1967

Atlas Corporation v. Donald T. Adams, Orville  
Gunther, A. Pratt Kesler, and Ransom Quinn,  
Members of the State Tax Commission of Utah,  
and George W. Barben, Executive Secretary of the  
State Tax Commission of Utah, and the State Tax  
Commission of Utah : Plaintiff'S Brief

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an original action in the Supreme Court of Utah in which plaintiff seeks issuance of a Peremptory Writ of Prohibition prohibiting defendants from executing upon certain warrants issued by defendant, The State Tax Commission of Utah, against all of plaintiff's real and tangible personal property in three counties, for the purpose of imposing personal liability upon plaintiff for payment of real property taxes assessed against two worthless mining properties, and from requiring that plaintiff personally furnish security for the payment of

such taxes, and from in any other manner seeking to collect such taxes by means other than the sale of the property taxed. On January 4th, 1966, this Court issued an Alternative Writ of Prohibition and Order to Show Cause why the Peremptory Writ of Prohibition prayed for should not issue.

The jurisdiction of this Court to hear and determine this case and to grant the relief requested by plaintiff is expressly provided by Article VIII, Section 4 of the Utah Constitution, and by Section 78-2-2, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, and Rule 65B(b)(4), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The issues presented in this action are urgent public questions of general importance to the State of Utah and its citizens. Defendants have not been content to abide by the decision of this Court in *San Juan County and State Tax Commission of Utah v. Jen, Inc.*, 16 U.2d 394, 401 P.2d 952 (1965), and to seek a solution to their grievances through legislative action, but, with apparent disdain for that decision, have endeavored to circumvent it. Defendants' actions discredit the authority of this Court and that discredit must be rectified by this Court. Defendants' unconcerned resort in this isolated instance to summary warrant proceedings for the collection of these real property taxes threatens the integrity of the Utah tax system. An early determination of the issues is in the interest of the parties and the public and is necessary to prevent irreparable loss and damage to plaintiff.

Plaintiff's verified Complaint and Petition for Writ of Prohibition sets forth in detail the facts necessary to the decision of the issues here presented. Defendants

have stipulated to the truth of the factual statements contained in paragraphs 1 through 28 of the Complaint and Petition. Based upon these facts, plaintiff contends that the taxes in question do not constitute a personal obligation of plaintiff and that the actions of defendants are unconstitutional.

Defendants claim that the summary warrant procedure applied by them in this case for the collection of real property taxes from plaintiff entitles the Commission, forthwith upon docketing the warrants, to institute a Sheriff's sale of all of a taxpayer's real and tangible personal property in the State, the same to be accomplished without the necessity of notice to the property owner, without regard to any limitation as to time, and without any right of redemption of property sold through the sheriff's sale. Plaintiff contends that the drastic and harsh procedures advocated in this case and actually employed by defendants as against plaintiff are repugnant to the real property tax laws, customs and concepts of the State of Utah.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiff is a Delaware corporation duly qualified to engage in business in the State of Utah. Defendants are the members and executive secretary of The State Tax Commission of Utah and The State Tax Commission of Utah. (For convenience, where The State Tax Commission of Utah is referred to hereafter separately from the remaining defendants, it is referred to as the "Commission.")

Plaintiff is engaged in the mining, extracting and processing of uranium and vanadium ores in Utah and owns or operates various mining properties from which it mines such ores. Plaintiff's mining properties were assessed by the Commission for the year 1965 for real property taxes pursuant to the provisions of Section 59-5-57, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, which provides for the assessment of metalliferous mining properties on the so-called "net proceeds" basis. Plaintiff has paid all 1965 real property taxes except such taxes assessed against the Mi Vida Mine and the South Almar Mine situated in San Juan County, Utah. Both of these mines were depleted prior to January 1, 1965, and on January 1, 1965, and throughout the year 1965 were valueless.

Defendants have assessed taxes against the Mi Vida Mine for 1965 in the sum of \$248,312.59, based upon an assessed valuation as of January 1, 1965, of \$5,988,342.00, and have assessed taxes against the South Almar Mine for 1965 in the sum of \$268,022.41, based upon an assessed valuation as of January 1, 1965, of \$6,463,667.00. These assessed valuations are equal to two times the average net annual proceeds realized from the operation of the Mi Vida and South Almar Mines respectively for the calendar years 1962, 1963 and 1964.

On July 9, 1965, the Commission served upon plaintiff a demand for security for payment of the 1965 and 1966 real property taxes assessed against all of plaintiff's mining properties, including the Mi Vida and South Almar Mines. In due course, plaintiff paid all taxes assessed against its mining properties except the

taxes assessed against the Mi Vida and South Almar Mines. Upon plaintiff's refusal to furnish the demanded security, defendants initiated jeopardy proceedings, and served upon plaintiff a Notice of Jeopardy Assessment, pursuant to which a hearing was held before the Commission, at which plaintiff filed a written protest to the jeopardy proceedings. Defendants, on November 10, 1965, by written decision, declared the 1965 real property taxes assessed against the Mi Vida and South Almar Mines to be in jeopardy.

Defendants then initiated in the name of the Commission and San Juan County an action in the San Juan County District Court seeking to restrain all plaintiff's operations, irrespective of the property upon which conducted, and to obtain appointment of a receiver to take possession of and hold all of plaintiff's properties. Defendants' application for preliminary injunction and appointment of a receiver was heard before the Honorable F. W. Keller, who, on December 3, 1965, rendered a Memorandum Decision denying the requested injunction and the request for appointment of a receiver. On December 8, 1965, the Commission and San Juan County voluntarily dismissed the pending action in the San Juan County District Court.

On December 1, 1965, defendants, presumably acting pursuant to Sections 59-5-79 and 59-5-80, and possibly Section 59-10-22, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, served upon plaintiff a Notice and Declaration of Taxes in Jeopardy, and pursuant thereto, on December 6, 1965, defendants docketed warrants in the sum of \$516,335.00

in the offices of the County Clerks of Salt Lake, San Juan and Grand Counties. Defendants assert their right to effect collection of the 1965 real property taxes assessed against the Mi Vida Mine and the South Almar Mine by execution upon these warrants, which are a cloud upon plaintiff's title to all real and tangible personal property owned by plaintiff and situated in the three named counties.

On December 10, 1965, the Commission filed with the Salt Lake County District Court an Affidavit for Issuance of Execution and a Notice of Motion for Leave to Issue Execution seeking sanction from the Salt Lake County District Court for execution upon the warrant docketed with the Salt Lake County Clerk. On December 14, 1965, plaintiff initiated an action against the Commission by the filing of a Complaint in the Salt Lake County District Court, seeking to enjoin the Commission from executing upon the warrants theretofore docketed, from enforcing personal liability against plaintiff for payment of the subject taxes, and for a declaratory judgment concerning the rights and duties of the parties. At the same time, plaintiff also filed a Motion for Preliminary Injunction. The Commission's Answer to, and Motion to Dismiss, plaintiff's Complaint were filed on December 15, 1965. On December 20, 1965, plaintiff's Motion for Preliminary Injunction, the Commission's Motion for Leave to Issue Execution upon the warrant docketed in Salt Lake County and the Commission's Motion to Dismiss plaintiff's Complaint were heard before the Honorable A. H. Ellett,

who granted the Commission's Motion to Dismiss plaintiff's Complaint and entered judgment accordingly.

As noted above, the taxes in question were assessed against two mining properties known as the Mi Vida and the South Alnar Mines, which were valueless on January 1, 1965, and throughout the year 1965. No operations were conducted upon these properties during 1965. No ores were mined from these properties in 1965. No proceeds whatever were realized from production of ores from these properties in 1965.

To the knowledge of the parties, neither defendants nor any of their predecessors in office have at any time, in the administration of the real property tax laws of this State, sought to collect taxes on real property by the summary procedure of docketing warrants enforceable personally against the owner of the properties. The use of warrants has been limited to cases where there is unquestioned personal liability, in an unquestioned amount, for payment of taxes other than real property taxes. No effort has ever been made by defendants or any of their predecessors in office to collect any taxes on real property by personal action against the owner or operator of the property except in the case of uranium and vanadium mining properties.

#### STATEMENT OF POINTS

Plaintiff relies upon the following points to support issuance of a Peremptory Writ of Prohibition herein:

## POINT I.

THERE IS NO PERSONAL LIABILITY FOR REAL PROPERTY TAXES, INCLUDING SUCH TAXES BASED UPON AN ASSESSED VALUATION DERIVED FROM "NET PROCEEDS."

## POINT II.

THE PROVISIONS OF THE REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF AND EXECUTION UPON WARRANTS FOR THE COLLECTION OF UNPAID TAXES DO NOT RELATE OR APPLY TO THE COLLECTION OF THE UNPAID REAL PROPERTY TAXES SOUGHT TO BE COLLECTED BY DEFENDANTS FROM PLAINTIFF HEREIN.

## POINT III.

THE PROVISIONS OF THE REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSION TO REQUIRE DEPOSIT OF SECURITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF REAL PROPERTY TAXES ON URANIUM AND VANADIUM MINES DO NOT GIVE RISE TO PERSONAL LIABILITY FOR SUCH TAXES.

## POINT IV.

UTAH CANNOT CONSTITUTIONALLY IMPOSE A TAX FOR THE YEAR 1965 ON THE PROPERTY INVOLVED IN THIS CASE BECAUSE SAID PROPERTY WAS WORTHLESS THROUGHOUT SAID YEAR AND THE TAX BEARS NO REASONABLE RELATION TO THE ACTUAL VALUE OF THE PROPERTY.



- (A) THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES;
- (B) ARTICLE XIII, SECTIONS 2 AND 3; ARTICLE VI, SECTION 26(8); AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 24, CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

#### POINT V.

THE PROVISIONS OF THE REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE, IF DEEMED TO GIVE RISE TO PERSONAL LIABILITY, CONSTITUTE AN ARBITRARY AND UNREASONABLE CLASSIFICATION OF URANIUM AND VANADIUM MINES IN VIOLATION OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES AND ARTICLE VI, SECTION 26(8) AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 24 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I.

THERE IS NO PERSONAL LIABILITY FOR REAL PROPERTY TAXES, INCLUDING SUCH TAXES BASED UPON AN ASSESSED VALUATION DERIVED FROM "NET PROCEEDS."

This question was squarely presented to this Court in 1965 in the case of *San Juan County and State Tax Commission of Utah v. Jen, Inc.*, 16 U.2d 394, 401 P.2d 952 (1965). This Court rendered its decision in that case on May 17, 1965. After full consideration of the entire

question, which was briefed thoroughly and argued ably for the Commission by counsel appearing in this action on behalf of defendants, this Court held "that the tax upon real property is a charge upon the property and not in the nature of an in personam obligation of the owner. . . ." This holding is clearly consonant with the prior decisions of this Court (*Crismon v. Reich*, 2 U. 111; *Citizens Coal Co. v. Capitol Cleaners & Dyers, Inc.*, 120 U. 285, 233 P.2d 377 (1951); *Crystal Car Line v. State Tax Commission*, 110 U. 426, 174 P.2d 984 (1946)), and with the decisions of other Courts interpreting and applying statutory provisions equivalent to the provisions of the Utah Code. (*Board of Commissioners of Ness County v. Hooper, et al.*, 204 Pac. 536 (Kan. 1922); *Calkins v. Smith*, 78 P.2d 74 (Mont. 1938); *State ex rel. Spokane and Eastern Trust Co. v. Nicholson, County Treasurer*, 240 Pac. 837 (Mont. 1925); *Santos v. Simon*, 138 P.2d 896 (Ariz. 1943); *Mari-copa County v. Arizona Tractor & Equipment Co.*, 109 P.2d 618 (Ariz. 1941); *McDonald v. Duckworth*, 173 P.2d 436 (Okl. 1946); *Allen v. Henshaw*, 168 P.2d 625 (Okl. 1946); *City of Salem v. Marion County*, 137 P.2d 977 (Ore. 1943); *Puget Sound Power & Light Co. v. Cowlitz County*, 234 P.2d 506 (Wash. 1951).)

Moreover, such holding is consistent with the legislative history of the statutes. It is well established that, at the common law, there is no personal liability on the part of an owner for taxes levied upon his real property. (*Territory of Alaska v. American Can Company*, 269 F. 2d 471, 475 (9th Cir. 1959); 84 C.J.S., "Taxation," § 643, p. 1318.) A statutory provision is necessary to create such personal liability. Prior to 1933, Sections 6090, 6091 and

6092, Compiled Laws of Utah, 1917, expressly provided for a personal action against the owner of real property against which taxes had been assessed that were delinquent in an amount of \$300.00 or more. These provisions were deleted from our statutes with the adoption of the Revised Statutes of Utah, 1933. There are at this time no provisions giving rise to personal liability for the payment of ad valorem real property taxes in the Utah statutes, and hence the common law rule that there is no personal liability for such taxes should and must be recognized, for the Legislature has expressly adopted the common law in cases not governed by the Constitution and laws of the State. (Section 68-3-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953.)

It is significant that the Commission, in its Second Biennial Report rendered October 31, 1934, considered at length the difficulty of collecting real property taxes on mining properties arising from the exclusivity of the statutory remedy of sale of the property subject to the four-year redemption period. The problem was stated in terms of the possibility that the mining property preliminarily sold for the taxes might be depleted during the four-year redemption period, and, hence, lack sufficient value when the sale became final to satisfy the taxes. After stating this problem, the Commission recommended "the amendment of the law so as to authorize the collection of the tax, with penalty and interest, by suit or otherwise immediately after delinquency." (3 Utah Public Documents, 1932-1934, "Second Biennial Report of the State Tax Commission of Utah," page 23.) The Commission's

concern and recommendation in this regard was reiterated in its Third Biennial Report. (See 3 Utah Public Documents, 1934-1936, "Third Biennial Report of the State Tax Commission of Utah," page 24.) Notwithstanding this recommendation, the Legislature has never acted to provide a means whereby real property taxes may be collected through the assertion of a personal claim against the property owner.

Defendants have urged and are urging the Utah judiciary, including this Court, to give an effect to the Utah statutes which the legislative branch of government has considered and repudiated. This is obviously true in view of the efforts, of which this Court may take judicial notice, to have the 1966 Special Session of the Utah Legislature adopt a statute expressly providing for personal liability for payment of real property taxes and by the Legislature's refusal to enact such proposed legislation. (S.B. 8, First Special Session, Thirty-Sixth Legislature, 1966.)

Plaintiff respectfully submits that this Court did not ignore or overlook the questions and arguments raised by defendants and their able counsel in the *Jen* case which was decided only eight months ago. The *Jen* decision clearly, decisively and correctly determined that there is no personal liability for the payment of taxes on real property, including, in this case as in the *Jen* case, real property taxes assessed against metalliferous uranium and vanadium mining properties upon the basis of net proceeds realized in periods prior to the date of assessment.

It is disturbing that defendants — public officials charged with the duty of upholding the law — would attempt, by the issuance and docketing of warrants and threatened execution thereupon and by other action, to circumvent and avoid the holding of this Court in the *Jen* case. Defendants' activities are doubly disturbing because defendants' Petition for Rehearing of the *Jen* case was expressly based upon Sections 59-5-79 and 59-5-80, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, which sections provide for the issuance of warrants for the collection of certain taxes, and upon which sections defendants apparently rely as authorizing their conduct in this case. The decision of this Court denying defendants' Petition for Rehearing of the *Jen* case correctly disposed of the contention that the warrant procedure was applicable to real property taxes upon metalliferous mining claims assessed on the basis of net proceeds.

Defendants have suggested that this case can be distinguished from the *Jen* case on the ground that in the *Jen* case the real property that was taxed was sold preliminarily to the county for the taxes prior to the attempted imposition of personal liability therefor. However, it is submitted that the holding of this Court in the *Jen* case is not based upon any theory of election of remedies. Indeed, the Court expressly held that under the Utah statutes the sole remedy is to enforce the lien upon the taxed property provided for by the statutes. After quoting Section 59-10-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, the Court in the *Jen* decision held:

“From the emphasized language it will be noted that the recourse is to the property, and

that the statute contains no express indication that the tax obligation runs to the owner. This court has heretofore held that since the legislature has provided this means for the collection of property taxes, which is based upon a lien upon the property, and has omitted expressing any intent that there should be a personal judgment, *that no such personal obligation exists.*" (Emphasis added.) (16 U.2d 394, 396.)

For the foregoing reasons, plaintiff respectfully submits that this Court has clearly and correctly resolved the questions raised by defendants by holding in the *Jen* case that there is no such personal liability under our statutes.

## POINT II.

### THE PROVISIONS OF THE REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF AND EXECUTION UPON WARRANTS FOR THE COLLECTION OF UNPAID TAXES DO NOT RELATE OR APPLY TO THE COLLECTION OF THE UNPAID REAL PROPERTY TAXES SOUGHT TO BE COLLECTED BY DEFENDANTS FROM PLAINTIFFS HEREIN.

Defendants rely upon Section 59-5-79 and 59-5-80, and upon Section 59-10-22, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as authorizing issuance of and execution upon warrants as a proper procedure for the collection of the taxes in question. This argument is not new to this Court. Defendants, in their Petition for Rehearing in the *Jen* case, argued that the decision "fails to take into consideration Sections 59-5-79 and 59-5-80, U.C.A., 1953, wherein the tax commission is directly empowered to seize and sell all

real and personal property of a delinquent taxpayer for the payment of the tax debt." (*San Juan County and State Tax Commission v. Jen, Inc.*, supra, Appellants' Petition for Rehearing and Brief in Support Thereof, page 2.) By its denial of defendants' Petition for Rehearing in the *Jen* case, this Court properly rejected defendants' patent misinterpretation of these sections. By their terms, Sections 59-5-79 and 59-5-80 apply only to a "tax imposed by this chapter. . . ." (Section 59-5-79, Utah Code Annotated, 1953.) This section was adopted by the Utah Legislature in 1937 as Chapter 101, Laws of Utah, 1937. Chapter 101 imposed *only* the Mining Occupation Tax, now provided for in Sections 59-5-66 through 59-5-85, Utah Code Annotated, 1953. That chapter did not impose and does not impose any tax whatever on real property.

Chapter 101, Laws of Utah, 1937, in addition to imposing the Mining Occupation Tax, also amended Sections 80-5-56 and 80-5-57 (now Sections 59-5-57 and 59-5-58, Utah Code Annotated, 1953), which sections prescribe the mode of assessment of metalliferous mines and mining claims. However, said sections do not impose any tax. They are purely administrative and provide for the assessment of metalliferous mines and mining claims at \$5.00 per acre plus an amount equal to two times the average net annual proceeds for a preceding period. The ad valorem tax on real property is imposed by Section 59-1-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953. Section 59-1-1 is not, of course, a part of Chapter 101, Laws of Utah, 1937.

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