1967

Atlas Corporation v. Donald T. Adams, Orville Gunther, A. Pratt Kesler, and Ransom Quinn, Members of the State Tax Commission of Utah, and George W. Barben, Executive Secretary of the State Tax Commission of Utah, and the State Tax Commission of Utah : Defendants' Brief In Opposition To Writ of Prohibition

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

#### THE TAX WARRANTS HEREIN ARE PROPERLY DOCKETED UNDER SECTION 59-5-79, U.C.A., 1953

The tax assessed against plaintiff's mines is based upon actual proceeds from these mines during the year 1964 as is required by Section 59-5-57, U.C.A., 1953. The tax resulting from plaintiff's 1964 production is due upon assessment in 1965 and became delinquent November 30, 1965. It is conceded by defendant that the taxes in question are now delinquent.

In this regard Section 59-5-79, U.C.A., 1953, provides:

“If the tax imposed by this *chapter* or any portion thereof is not paid when the same becomes due, the tax commission may issue a warrant, in duplicate under its official seal, directed to the sheriff of *any* county of the state commanding him to levy upon and sell the real and

personal property of the taxpayer found within this county for the payment of the amount thereof, with the added penalties, interest and the cost of executing the warrant, and to return such warrant to the tax commission and pay to it the money collected by virtue thereof by a time to be therein specified, not more than sixty days from the date of the warrant." (Emphasis added.)

Section 59-5-80 further provides:

"Immediately upon receipt of said warrant in duplicate the sheriff shall file the duplicate with the clerk of the district court in this county, and thereupon the clerk shall enter in the judgment docket, in the column for judgment debtors, the name of the delinquent taxpayer mentioned in the warrant, and in appropriate columns the amount of the tax or portion thereof and penalties for which the warrant is issued and the date when such duplicate is filed, and thereupon the amount of such warrant so docketed shall have the force and effect of an execution against all personal property of the delinquent taxpayer, and shall also become a lien upon the real property of the taxpayer, against whom it is issued in the same manner as a judgment duly rendered by any district court and docketed in the office of the clerk thereof. The sheriff shall thereupon proceed upon the same in all respects, with like effect, and in the same manner as is prescribed by law in respect to executions issued against property upon judgments of a court of record, and shall be entitled to the same fees for his services in executing the warrant, to be collected in the same manner."

It is contended by Atlas that the above-cited sections only authorize the docketing of a warrant to ef-

fectuate the collection of the mining occupation taxes and are not intended to operate in the area of net proceeds ad valorem taxation.

Defendant refers the Court to Chapter 101 of Laws of Utah, 1937, for a more complete understanding of the above sections. Senate Bill 192 which resulted in the enactment of these sections was there entitled "An Act Amending Sections 80-5-55, 80-5-56, and 80-5-57, Revised Statutes of Utah, 1933, Relating to the Assessment of Mines; Enacting New Sections Imposing an Occupation Tax on All Engaged in the Business of Mining or Producing Metalliferous Ores; Providing for the Collection and Disposition of such Occupation Tax; Fixing the Time in Which an Action for the Collection Thereof May be Commenced; Fixing the Duties of the State Tax Commission; Making It a Crime and Fixing Penalties for Making False Statements for the Purpose of Evading the Payment of the Tax."

It should be noted that the original bill dealt with both net proceeds and mining occupation taxes and that Section 15 of that bill referred to "any tax imposed by this chapter" or, in other words, either tax.

The same phraseology is perpetuated in the 1953 Code and as both the mining occupation tax and the net proceeds ad valorem tax with which we are here concerned fall under Chapter 5 of Title 59, it would appear that the plain meaning of the statute authorizes the docketing of the warrant.

## POINT II

### THE TAX WARRANTS HEREIN ARE PROPERLY DOCKETED UNDER SECTION 59-10-22, U.C.A., 1953

As more fully appears from the Declaration of Taxes in Jeopardy (Exhibit "J") on file herein, the defendant has also docketed the warrant in this matter pursuant to authority of Section 59-10-22, U.C.A., 1953. This section provides :

"Whenever the tax commission shall find that a person liable for the payment of any tax which is collectible by the tax commission designs quickly to depart from the state of Utah, or to remove his property therefrom, or to conceal himself or his property therein, or to do any other act tending to prejudice or to render wholly or partially ineffectual proceedings to collect the tax for the period then last past or for the period then current and that loss to the state will ensue unless such proceedings be brought without delay, the tax commission shall declare the taxable period for such taxpayer immediately terminated and the report, if any, for such period immediately due, and shall cause notice of such findings and declaration to be given the taxpayer, together with a demand for the immediate payment of the tax for the period so declared terminated and of any other tax or any part thereof unpaid, whether or not the time otherwise allowed by law for filing returns, assessing tax and paying the tax has expired; and such taxes shall thereupon become immediately due and payable, *and if the tax is not paid, as provided herein, the collection shall be made in the same manner as is provided for the collection of delinquent taxes in sections 59-13-53 and 59-13-54, Utah Code Annotated 1953, and in addition thereto the tax commission may,*

*in its discretion, issue a warrant of like terms, force and effect, directed to any duly authorized representative of the tax commission, and in the execution thereof such representative shall have all the powers conferred by law upon sheriffs, but shall be entitled to no fee or compensation in excess of actual expenses paid in the performance of such duty. In any proceeding in court brought to enforce payment of taxes made due and payable by virtue of the provisions of this section, the findings of the tax commission, made as herein provided, whether made after notice to the taxpayer or not, shall be for all purposes presumptive evidence of the taxpayer's design."* (Emphasis added.)

The Tax Commission submits that this statute furnishes additional support for the docketing of the warrant and proposed execution thereunder.

### POINT III

#### THE NET PROCEEDS AD VALOREM TAX ESTABLISHED BY SECTION 59-5-57, U.C.A., 1953, IS CONSTITUTIONAL

Atlas Corporation contends that Section 59-5-57, U.C.A., 1953, is unconstitutional. Part of the basis for this contention is found in dictum of the United States Supreme Court in the case of *South Utah Mines & Smelters v. Beaver County*, 262 U.S. 325, 43 S. Ct. 577, 67 L.Ed. 1004 (1922).

In that case the net proceeds arose from a "lot of refuse material, which, long prior to the imposition of the tax, had been severed from the mining claims, removed to a distance, submitted to the process of reduc-

tion, and stored on lands separate and apart from the claims." 262 U.S. 325, 331.

The statutes then in effect provided that the net proceeds should be trebled to arrive at the assessment valuation.

The comments of the court in regard to the constitutionality of the Utah statute were made with Article XIII, Sec. 3 of the Utah Constitution in view.

Even if the facts of the present case fell within the scope of the dictum of the United States Supreme Court, which they do not, both the Utah statute and Constitution have been amended to remove any question of unconstitutionality from Section 59-5-57 U.C.A., 1953.

This Section was amended by the 1963 Utah Legislature to provide that no assessment valuation thereunder shall be accorded to proceeds of uranium or vanadium mines in any year "in which there were no gross proceeds realized in the year next preceding the year of assessment.

Of greater significance is the fact that Article XIII, Section 4 of the Utah Constitution was amended in 1930 to read:

"All metalliferous mines or mining claims, both placer and rock in place, shall be assessed as the Legislature shall provide, . . ."

It is also worthy of note that the Utah Supreme Court has interpreted the *South Utah Mines & Smelters* case as upholding the constitutionality of the net proceeds valuation formula provided by Section 59-5-57,

U.C.A., 1953. See *United States S. R. & M. Co. v. Haynes*, 111 Utah 172, at 181, 176 P.2d 622 and cases cited therein.

This interpretation is probably based in part upon the following language of the United States Supreme Court in the *South Utah Mines & Smelters* case:

“The rule prescribed for the valuation of metalliferous mines, as we have already indicated, is one of necessity, and should not be extended to cases clearly not within the reason of the rule. The tailings, severed and removed from the mining claims, changed in character, placed on other and separate lands and *having an ascertained and adjudicated value of their own*, in our opinion, constituted a unit of property entirely apart from the mine from which they had been taken. . . . *The plaintiff, therefore, was subject to taxation upon their value, but not as a mine, since that implies something capable of being mined which this loose and homogeneous deposit obviously was not.*

“How far the state statute defining the net annual proceeds to be considered in measuring the value of a mine, properly includes those derived from dumps and tailings placed and remaining upon the mining claims or connected with a going mine, we do not determine; *but we do hold that the proceeds from the tailings in question, under the facts here disclosed, are not included within its terms.*” (Emphasis added.)

The constitutionality of the net proceeds ad valorem tax seems to be upheld without any doubt in the following cases which were combined for purposes of trial in the 10th Circuit Court of Appeals: *Salt Lake County v. Kennecott Copper Corp.*, *Summit County v. Silver King Coalition Mines Co.*, *Summit County v. Parks Utah*

*Cons. Mines Co., Wasatch County v. Parks Utah Cons. Mines Co., Wasatch County v. New Park Mining Co.*, 163 Fed. 2d 484. The court there stated:

“The Supreme Court of Utah quite recently considered the question and held without qualification that in the taxation of mines and mining claims in that state, premium or subsidy payments of this kind should be added to twice the amount of the proceeds received from the sale of the ores for the preceding calendar year as the base for such taxation. *United States Smelting, Refining & Mining Co. v. Haynes*, 111 Utah 172, 176 P.2d 622. And at the same time, the court reached a like conclusion in a case involving a closely similar question. *Combined Metals Reduction Co. v. State Tax Comm.*, 111 Utah 188, 176 P. 2d 614.”

“It will be observed that these provisions require that all tangible property, including metalliferous mines, shall be subjected to a uniform and equal rate of assessment according to its value in money. The method or yardstick by which the valuation in money is to be determined shall be prescribed by the legislature. . . . *It is conceded that the statutory method of valuing metalliferous mines for taxation purposes at \$5.00 per acre plus a multiple or sub-multiple of the net proceeds is a proper and constitutional formula for assessment purposes.*”

Thus, it can be stated that the 10th Circuit Court of Appeals has passed upon the constitutionality of the taxes involved in a number of instances, and the Utah Supreme Court has likewise passed upon the constitutionality of this section in the following cases heretofore mentioned by the 10th Circuit Court of Appeals: *United States Smelting, Refining & Mining Co. v. Haynes*, 111

Utah 172, 176 P. 2d 622, and *Combined Metals Reduction Co. v. Tooele Co.*, 111 Utah 188, 176 P. 2d 614. In these two cases the Utah Supreme Court upheld the net proceeds method of valuation. Likewise, the Utah Supreme Court in earlier decisions of *Tintic Standard Mining Co. v. Utah County*, 80 Utah 491, 15 P 2d 633, and *Mercur Gold Mining & Smelting v. Spry*, 16 Utah 222, has upheld and declared constitutional the net proceeds ad valorem tax.

The *Tintic Standard Mining* case, supra, is also important because it defines certain rules of statutory interpretation which are brought into issue because of defendant's attack on the constitutionality of Section 59-5-57.

The court therein said at P. 498:

“An enactment of the Legislature cannot be lightly set aside. Courts will not declare a statute unconstitutional unless it clearly and manifestly violates some constitutional provision. Every presumption will be indulged in favor of the constitutionality of an act and every reasonable doubt resolved in favor of validity. If by any fair interpretation of the statute the Legislature can be upheld, it is the duty of courts to sustain it.”

The plaintiff also contends that the case of *Moon Lake Electric Association v. Utah State Tax Commission*, 9 Utah 2d 384, 345 P.2d 612, establishes a system of constitutional priorities enthroneing the equality of assessment provisions of Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 as controlling over the validity of other sections authorizing or supporting Section 59-5-57. As the *Moon Lake* case did not involve Article XIII, Section 4 of the Utah

Constitution, the Tax Commission cannot concede this to be true.

Even if the question of equality of assessment is involved herein, it only relates to property similarly situated. It is elemental that:

“The rule of uniformity in taxation applies to property of like kind and character and similarly situated, and a tax, in order to be uniform, must operate alike on all persons, things, or property, similarly situated. So the requirement is complied with when the tax is levied equally and uniformly on all subjects of the same class and kind.” 84 C.J.S. Taxation, Section 22, P. 79.

Furthermore, from this same volume and section, page 77:

“Equality in taxation is accomplished when the burden of the tax falls equally and impartially on all the persons and property subject to it, so that no higher rate or greater levy in proportion to value is imposed on one person or species of property than on others similarly situated or of like character. *Equality of taxation does not require identical taxation*, and it is not necessary that the benefits arising from taxation should be enjoyed by all the people in equal degree, or that each person should participate in each particular benefit. Equality of operation does not mean indiscriminate operation on persons merely as such, but on persons according to their relationship.” (Emphasis added.)

Since all uranium mine operators and, in fact, all metalliferous mine operators and owners, and any and all persons having a claim or title therein have their property assessed in the same manner, and this assess-

ment is based upon a valid constitutional procedure prescribed by the legislature which is not capricious or arbitrary and treats all parties similarly situated alike, the constitutionality of Section 59-5-57, and the net proceeds formula attempting to arrive at value, should be sustained.

#### POINT IV

#### THE INSTANT CONTROVERSY IS DISTINGUISHABLE FROM PRIOR RULINGS OF THIS COURT

The plaintiff, Atlas Corporation, places great reliance on the decision of this Court in *San Juan County and State Tax Commission v. Jen, Inc.*, 16 Utah 2d 394, 491 P. 2d 952. There San Juan County and the State Tax Commission of Utah sued to obtain a personal judgment against a foreign corporation which had no other property in Utah except a depleted mine which had been sold at a preliminary tax sale to San Juan County. As the issues in that case were framed for trial in the District Court of San Juan County, the Court was asked to pass upon two questions. The first was whether there was personal liability for real property taxes including real property taxes based upon annual net proceeds. The second was whether the tax was satisfied by the preliminary tax sale of property to San Juan County. In commenting upon these two propositions, Judge Keller, in his memorandum decision, dated October 18, 1963, stated:

“The plaintiffs cite as authority for the bringing of this action the concurring opinion of Justice Wolfe in the case of *Hayes v. Gibbs*, 110 Utah 54, 169 P. 2d 781. In that opinion, Justice Wolfe

supports his conclusion that a levy of taxes in this state 'smacks of an assessment against the person rather than a charge against the realty alone' by a citation of statutory provisions, which by the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, are as follows: 59-10-1, 59-5-4, 59-5-12, 59-5-13, and 59-5-18. Of these statutory provisions, the one most specifically supporting the conclusion of Justice Wolfe is 59-10-1, which I quote:

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